
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

July 20, 2023 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, July 20, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – July 6, 2023 
          Work Session – July 12, 2023 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Approval – Clean Water State Revolving Funds (CWSRF) - Wastewater. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to retain C2AE from Escanaba, MI, for engineering 
services with regard to the City of Escanaba Clean Water State Revolving Funds (CWSRF) in an amount not to exceed 
$1,994,000.00 in total. 
 

2. Approval – Proposed Administrative Consent Order (ACO) with EGLE - Wastewater. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to enter into and sign the Proposed Administrative 
Consent Order (ACO) with EGLE in the amount of $17,158.84 for administrative fees at the recommendation of the  
City’s attorneys, Foster Swift Collins & Smith, P.C. 
 

3. Approval – PFAS Cost Recovery Program - Wastewater. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to enter the PFAS Cost Recovery Program at the 
recommendation of the City’s attorneys, Foster Swift Collins & Smith, P.C. 
 

4. Approval – Repair of City Hall Condensers - Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to obtain the services of Prime Specialty Contracting 
of Marquette, MI to complete repairs to condensers at City Hall in an amount not to exceed $13,813. Money is 
budgeted and available. 
 

5. Approval – Demolition at 1002 Stephenson Avenue – Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to obtain the services of J&S Klee Enterprises of 
Wilson, MI to demolish and remove the structures, with complete property restoration at 1002 Stephenson Avenue, 
for an amount not to exceed $14,500. This property was condemned by the City Council on July 21, 2022. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      



Agenda – July 20, 2023 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          
 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
James R. McNeil 
City Manager  



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, July 6, 2023 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from June 15, 2023, as submitted. 
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Special 
Meeting minutes from June 29, 2023, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION  
 

• Council Member Moore – Old Business item number one because she is the 
Executive Director of Enhance Escanaba. 

• Mayor Ammel – New Business item number three because he is part of the 
organization committee. 

 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

• Ann Fix – discussed the garden proposal on Sand Point. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
UB-1 Approval – Request to Develop and Maintain Garden on City Property - 
Administration. 



City Council Minutes  
July 6, 2023 – cont. 
 

2 
 

Enhance Escanaba has requested City Council authorization to build and maintain a 
garden on Sand Point. A proposed agreement and sketch were included in the agenda 
packet. 
 
UB-1 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve a request from Enhance 
Escanaba to build and maintain a garden on Sand Point along with adding an escrow 
account to the contract for future maintenance.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Abstain: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1282, An Ordinance to Amend Marihuana 
Establishment Distancing Regulations within the Zoning Ordinance, and Setting 
the Date of Thursday, August 3, 2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and 
Adoption - Planning & Zoning. 
 

The Planning Commission requested the City Council to consider this the first reading 
of Ordinance No. 1282, An Ordinance to Amend Marihuana Establishment Distancing 
Regulations within the Zoning Ordinance. Administration requested that the City 
Council set August 3, 2023, for the second reading, public hearing adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1282. 
 
NB-1 Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, to consider this the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 1282, An Ordinance to Amend Marihuana Establishment Distancing 
Regulations within the Zoning Ordinance and to set August 3, 2023, for the second 
reading, public hearing adoption of Ordinance No. 1282. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, Beauchamp, Moore, DuBord, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NB-2 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1283, An Ordinance to Amend Setback-
Related Language within the Zoning Ordinance, and Setting the Date of Thursday, 
August 3, 2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption - Planning 
& Zoning. 
 

The Planning Commission requested the City Council to consider this the first reading 



City Council Minutes  
July 6, 2023 – cont. 
 

3 
 

of Ordinance No. 1283, An Ordinance to Amend Setback-Related Language within 
the Zoning Ordinance. Administration requested that the City Council set August 3, 
2023, for the second reading, public hearing adoption of Ordinance No. 1283. 
 
NB-2 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to consider this the first reading of Ordinance 
No. 1283, An Ordinance to Amend Setback-Related Language within the Zoning 
Ordinance and to set August 3, 2023, for the second reading, public hearing adoption 
of Ordinance No. 1283. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
   

NB-3 Approval – Request for use of Ludington Park for Annual UPtoberfest 
Celebration – Administration. 
 

Administration recommended approval of a Special Event Application submitted by 
the Bay de Noc Brewers/United Way of Delta County to host UPtoberfest in Ludington 
Park on Saturday, October 14, 2023. Administration recommended approval of the 
request contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the 
City of Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor 
material and clean up at the conclusion of the event. 
 
NB-3 Moore moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve a 
Special Event Application submitted by the Bay de Noc Brewers/United Way of Delta 
County to host UPtoberfest in Ludington Park on Saturday, October 14, 2023, 
contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the City of 
Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor material 
and clean up at the conclusion of the event. 
 
Abstain: Mayor Ammel 
 

 
NB-4 Approval - Use of Public Space - Ludington Street - Pulling for Honor - 
Administration. 
 

Scott Knauf with Honor Flight requested approval to use Ludington Street  from 14th 
Street to 16th Street on Saturday, August 5, 2023, from 12:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. for 
setup, and 2:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m., for Pulling for Honor (fundraiser for U.P. Honor 
Flight). Administration recommended approval of the request contingent upon the 
following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the City of Escanaba as an 
additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor material and clean up at 
the conclusion of the event. 
 
NB-4 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve 



City Council Minutes  
July 6, 2023 – cont. 
 

4 
 

a request from Scott Knauf with Honor Flight to use Ludington Street  from 14th Street 
to 16th Street on Saturday, August 5, 2023, from 12:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. for setup, 
and 2:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m., for Pulling for Honor (fundraiser for U.P. Honor Flight), 
contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the City of 
Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor material 
and clean up at the conclusion of the event. 
 

 
NB-5 Approval – ARPA Project – Division A – LSLR – Water. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to hire and retain the professional 
services of Oberstar, Inc. of Marquette, Michigan with regard to the City of Escanaba's 
ARPA Project - Division A - Lead Service Line Replacement in an amount not to 
exceed $8,089,228, including a 6% contingency. 
 
NB-5 Moore moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to hire and retain the 
professional services of Oberstar, Inc. of Marquette, Michigan with regard to the City 
of Escanaba's ARPA Project - Division A - Lead Service Line Replacement in an 
amount not to exceed $8,089,228, including a 6% contingency. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Beauchamp, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
  

 
NB-6 Approval – ARPA Project – Division B – Watermain Improvement Project – 
Water. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to hire and retain the professional 
services of Oberstar, Inc. of Marquette, Michigan with regard to the City of Escanaba's 
ARPA Project - Division B - Watermain Improvement Project in an amount not to 
exceed $9,326,972.64, including construction and a 6% contingency, along with Non-
Participating Funds in the amount of $1,645,576.72, including construction and a 6% 
contingency, for a total of $10,972,549.36. 
 
NB-6 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve to hire and retain the professional 
services of Oberstar, Inc. of Marquette, Michigan with regard to the City of Escanaba's 
ARPA Project - Division B - Watermain Improvement Project in an amount not to 
exceed $9,326,972.64, including construction and a 6% contingency, along with Non-
Participating Funds in the amount of $1,645,576.72, including construction and a 6% 
contingency, for a total of $10,972,549.36. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 



City Council Minutes  
July 6, 2023 – cont. 
 

5 
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
   

 
NB-7 Approval – C2AE – Davis Bacon Wage Review for ARPA Projects (LSLR and 
DWAM) – Water. 
 

Administration requested for City Council authorization to hire and retain the services 
of C2AE of Escanaba MI, to complete Davis Bacon Wage Review and Certification 
work, as per the grant agreement, at a cost not to exceed $10,600.00. Money was 
available and budgeted for this type of use within the Water Fund Budget for 
Professional Services. 
 
NB-7 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to hire and retain the 
services of C2AE of Escanaba MI, to complete Davis Bacon Wage Review and 
Certification work, as per the grant agreement, at a cost not to exceed $10,600.00. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-8 Approval – WTP Asphalt Patching – Water. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to obtain the services of Midwest 
Asphalt and Gravel of Iron Mountain, MI to complete the needed asphalt patchwork 
created from work done on the water system in an amount not to exceed $325.00/ton. 
Money was budgeted and available. 
 
NB-8 Moore moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to obtain the services of 
Midwest Asphalt and Gravel of Iron Mountain, MI to complete the needed asphalt 
patchwork created from work done on the water system in an amount not to exceed 
$325.00/ton. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Beauchamp, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-9 Approval – Water Treatment Plant Generator Installation – Water. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to hire and retain the services of 
Master Electric, Inc. of Escanaba, Michigan for installation of a new generator for the 
Water Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $42,000.00, which includes monies 



City Council Minutes  
July 6, 2023 – cont. 
 

6 
 

for contingencies for installation. An additional $10,000.00 was needed for 
contingencies such as concrete pad, site prep, and demolition of existing generator 
for a total of $52,000.00. Money was available and budgeted for this service. 
 
NB-9 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to hire and retain the services of 
Master Electric, Inc. of Escanaba, Michigan for installation of a new generator for the 
Water Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $42,000.00, which includes monies 
for contingencies for installation, also an additional $10,000.00 for contingencies such 
as concrete pad, site prep, and demolition of existing generator for a total of 
$52,000.00.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
NB-10 Approval – Use of Public Space – Ludington Street – Downtown Sidewalk 
Sales – Administration. 
 

The Downtown Partners in Business requested the City Council to approve the closure 
of Ludington Street on July 29, 2023, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. for setup, and 10:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. for the annual “Downtown Sidewalk Day’s” event. 
 
NB-10 Flath moved, Moore seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve a 
request from The Downtown Partners in Business for the closure of Ludington Street 
on July 29, 2023, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. for setup, and 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
for the annual “Downtown Sidewalk Day’s” event, contingent upon the following: 1) 
event sponsors provide all labor material and clean up at the conclusion of the event. 
 

 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES – None 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• Ludington Park looked fantastic for the July 4TH festivities on July 1st. 

• Public Works and crew did an outstanding job cleaning up after Saturday’s event. 

• Recreation did a great job getting everything set up and for the Independence Day 
Celebration. 



City Council Minutes  
July 6, 2023 – cont. 
 

7 
 

Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 8:01 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Work Session Meeting 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023 
 
Pursuit to a special meeting notice posted July 5, 2023, the meeting was called to order 
by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
  
Absent: None 
   
Also Present:  City Manager James R. McNeil, Deputy City Clerk Tammy Weissert, 

Department Heads, media, and members of the public. 
 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the 
City Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Discussion – EGLE – Administrative Consent Order. 
 

Administration led a discussion on a draft Administrative Consent Order (ACO). 
 

• Discussed the DRAFT Administrative Consent Order (ACO) and the goals of it; 

• Discussed what an ACO was, why is it a thing right now, and what are the 
implications of it; 

• Jay Parent from the Marquette District Office offered perspective from the 
EGLE side; 

• Water levels of the lake exposed a lot of deficiencies in the collection system 
in Escanaba, at the same time the Wastewater Treatment Plant is in rough 
shape; 

• Discussed storm sewers and sanitary sewers; 

• Discussed roof drains and sump pumps; 

• The entire dewatering of Escanaba is going to the Wastewater Treatment Plant; 

• City staff talked about (ACO) pros and cons. 
 



City Council Minutes         
July 12, 2023 – cont.  
 

 2 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 
 

Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 5:48 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

Tammy Weissert    Approved: ______________________ 
City Clerk Deputy City Clerk     Mark Ammel, Mayor  

 
 





















 

Jason, 
Following up with you after our technicians visit last week where it was indicated that the 2 large Trane 
condensers were in need of repair, and a quote was being requested. After discussing with Jim and 
reading through the diagnosis, we estimated the cost of repairs for the north and south condensers 
below. Should you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out to us. 
  
South Condenser 

 Recover the refrigerant charge currently in both circuits of the South unit 
o Based on last season’s diagnostics, the unit had a full charge in both circuits 

 Replace both hot gas bypass valves and filter dryers 
 Add two (2) isolation valves to each circuit, to match the North unit for future serviceability 
 Pull vacuum on the system to verify work 
 Re-charge refrigerant (existing R-22) in both circuits 
 Test, check, and verify operation 
 NOTE:  until repairs are actually made, performance and other issues still could require 

addressing 
  
Estimated cost of repairs:  $10,480.00 
  
North Condenser 

 Replace filter dryer and schrader cores 
 Pull vacuum on the system and add small charge for testing 
 Leak check circuit (repair if necessary – assumed to be minor repair, less than 1 hour of repairs) 
 Finish charge refrigerant (Retro R-438A, circuit A only) 
 Leak check again 
 Test, check, and verify operations of circuit A 
 NOTE:  until repairs are actually made on circuit A, performance and other issues still could 

require addressing 
 Recheck circuit B performance as well 

  
Estimated cost of repairs:  $3,333.00 
  
Thank you, 
  
Taylor Birmann, Service Coordinator 
Prime Specialty Contracting 
O: 906.226.8381                 
A: 902 West Baraga Ave., Marquette, MI 49855 
E: Taylor@PrimeMQT.com 
W: PrimeMQT.com 

 
 






	07.20.2023 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm07.06.2023
	cm07.12.2023 work session
	NB-1
	MX-M363N_20230713_120934

	NB-2
	NB-3
	MX-M363N_20230713_122114

	NB-4
	NB-4
	Prime Quote

	NB-5
	NB-5
	thumbnail_20230622_110207 (4)




